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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AM/ 017643

Ta the Partner of

Arab Co-Operation for Financial Investments Company
(A Limited Liability Company)

Amman - Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Arab Co-Operation for Financial Investments
Company (a Limited Liability Company), which comprise of the statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in partner's equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) tegether with the other ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Company's financial statements in the Kingdom of Jordan, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The accompanylng financial statements are a translation of the original financial statements
which are in Arabic language, to which reference should be made.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and
for such internal control 25 management determines necessary to enable the preparation of
financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management ks responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseelng the Campany’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and malntain
prafessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contrel,

- Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectivenass of the internal control.

- Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s wuse of the golng concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
centinue as a going concern. If we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in cur auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audlt evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represents the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Also, we provide with those in charge with governance evidence of our compliance to the
profession ethics and independence, yet communicating with them in regards of all these matters
and other matters that might affect our independence and whichever applicable to protect our
independency and ethics.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The Company maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the
accompanying financial statements. We recommend to approve these financial statements.
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ARAB CO-OPERATION FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY

(A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ﬁacamb-Er 31,
Note 2021 2020
1o j[e}
ASSETS

Balances with banks and other financial institutions 4 8,023,452 9,687,787
Trade receivables- spot 5/ A 2,647,334 1,961,808
Trade receivables- margin 5/B 27,948,876 24,458,558
Other debit balances & 169,459 137,272
Land held for sale 7 1,696,734 1,696,734
Deferred Tax Assets 12/C 1,204,945 1,192,280
Property and equipment — net & 31,784 44,075
Intangible assets 9 22,810 17,597

TOTAL ASSETS 41,745,394 39,196,111

LIABILITIES AND PARTNER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Due to banks 10 7,799,000 3,418,442
Accounts Payables - Brokerage 7.404,736 9,410,964
Other credit balances 11 1,532,621 1,415,138
Cash margins 24,374 122,297
Income tax provision 12/A 572,679 463,758

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,333,410 14,830,599

PARTNER'S EQUITY

Paid up capital 13 15,600,000 15,600,000
Statutory reserve 13 6,031,953 5,850,622
Retained eamings 14 2,780,031 2,914,890

TOTAL PARTNER'S EQUITY 24,411,984 24,365,512

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNER'S EQUITY 41,745,394 39,196,111

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (25) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL
PART OF THESE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH
THE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.



ARAB CO-OPERATION FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY

(A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

AMMAN — JORDAN
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended
) December 31,
Mote 2021 2020
o D
REVENUE:

Trading commissions 15 1,182,083 1,388,357
Interest Income 2,687,767 2,606,028
(Losses) from forelgn currencles exchange differences (81,050} (13,288)
Other revenue 37,024 16,091

Total Revenue 3,825,824 3,997,228

EXPENSES:
Administrative expenses 16 1,853,344 1,725,980
Provision for expected credit losses —
Direct facilities 5 44,532 306,110
Provision for expected credit losses - indirect
facilities 11 701 2,068

Provision for impairment in lands held for sale T - 153,116
Financing costs 92,254 46,381
Depreciation and amaortization QBB 21,680 18,269

Total Expenses 2,012,511 2,251,924
Profit for the yvear before income tax 1,813,313 1,745,304
Income tax expense 12/8 {566,453} (514,709)

Praofit for the year / total comprehensive income 1,246 860 1,230,595

THE ACCOMPANYING MOTES FROM (1) TO (25) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL
PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH
THE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.



Eor the Year 2021
Balance as of January 1, 2021
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transferred to statutory reserve
Dividends (note 13)

Balance - End of the Year

For the Year 2020
Balance as of January 1, 2020
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transferred to statutory reserve
Dividends {note 13)

Balance - End of the Year

Statutory Retained

Capital Rasarva Earnings Total
D 1D D 1D

15,600,000 5,850,622 2,914,850 24,365,512
- 1,246,860 1,246,860

- 181,331 (181,331} =

: - (1,200,388} _ (1,200,388)
15,600,000 6,031,953 _ 2,780,031 24,411,984
15,600,000 5,676,092  3,031476 24,307,568
. - 1,230,595 1,230,595

- 174,530  (174,530)
- - {1,172,651)

(1,172,651)

15,600,000 5,850,622 2,914,890

24,365,512

The retained earnings balance amounted to JD 1,204,945 as of December 31, 2021, against the

deferred tax assets is restricted to the actual achleved amount according to the Central Bank of
Jordan and the Amman Securities Exchange Committee instructions.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (25) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL

PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH
THE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'™S REPORT.
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ARAB CO- VE X
(A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended
December 31,
Motes 2021 _ 2020
[} o
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before Income tax 1,813,313 1,745,304
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization BRD 21,680 18,269
Provision for expected cradit loss - direct facilities 5 44,532 306,110
Provision for expected credit losses - indirect fadilities 11 701 2,068
Provision for impairment In lands held for sale 7 - 153,116
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (137} z
Prior years tax deposits 0,563 =
Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Changes
in Working Capital 1,921,052 2,224 867
Changes in Working capiltal:
{Increase) in trade receivables (4,220,376) {1,971,470)
{Increase} In other debit balances (32,187) (13,492}
{Decrease) Increase In trade payables - brokerage {2,006,228) 1,003 403
Increase (decrease) in other credit balances 9,045 {111,678)
{Decrease) in cash margins (97.923) (3569,894)
Cash Flows [used in) from Operating Activities before
Incomaea tax paid (4,346,617) 761,736
Income tax paid 1274 (511,160)  (400,058)
Net Cash Flows (used In) from Operating Activities (4,857, 777) 351,678
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Purchasa) of property and equipment 8 (2,705} (36,932)
{Purchase) of intangible assels g {11,950} [(B,959)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 190 -
Met Cash Flows (used In) Investing Actlvities (14,465) (45,891}
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid __(L172,651) (1,281,766}
Met Cash Flows {used in) Financing Activities (1,172,651} (1,281, 766)
Met (Decrease) in Cash (6,044,893) (965,979)
iCash and cash eguivalents - beginning of the year 5,269,345 7,235,324
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 4 244,452 6,269,345
Maon-Cash transactions:
Financing Operations
Unpaid dividends to partners 1,200,388 1,172,651

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (25) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL

PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH
THE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.



ARAB EGFUEMTIQHNEQR.MLMMEE{_‘MEMM
(A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ration
Arab Co-Operation for Financial Investments was registered and Incorporated as a limited
liability company in Jordan on January 25, 1990. The Company registered “ABC
Investments” as its trade name on September 30, 2002, The Company's activities include
asset management and brokerage on behalf of its clients at the Amman Stock Exchange and
abroad, in addition to offering financial consulting services for investing in securities and for
new stock offerings.

The Company Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arab Banking Corporation {Jordan), of which
the Arab Banking Corporation (Bahrain) owns approximately B&.7%.

The Board of Directors approved the financial statements on February 22, 2022,

The financial statements of the Company are consolidated with the financial statements of
Arab Banking Corporation - Jordan.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and the Interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

The financial statements are presented In Jordanian Dinars (JD) which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are conskstent
with those used in the preparation of the annual financlal statements for the year ended
December 31, 2020, except for the effect of the application of the new and revised standards
as stated in notes (3 - (a) & (b)).

Below are the significant accounting policeies used by the company |

Segment Information

Business sectors represent a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or
sarvices subject to risks and returns different from those of other business sectors
{measured in accordance with the reports sent to the operations management and decision
makers in the company ).

The geographical sector relates to providing products or services In a specific economic
environment subject to risk and returns different from those of sectors functioning in other
economic environments.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recoanition and Measurements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company's statement of
financial position when the Company beacomes a party In the contractual clause,

Recognized financial assets and financial llabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributed to the acquisition or to the issuance of the
financial assets and financial liabilities either added to, or deducted from, the fair value of
tha financlal assets or financial liabilities, according to the necessity during initial recognition.
Moreover, transaction costs that are directly attributed to the acquisition of financial assets
ar financial llabllities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss statemeant.



If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will process
the difference as follows:

« Fair value s recognized at a quoted price in active markets for assets or liabllities identical
in nature, or according to a valuation method that only uses input data that are measurable
in the markets. Where profit or loss differences are recognized at initial recognition (i.e.,
profit or loss in day one).

« In all other cases, fair value is adjusted to be in line with the transaction price (i.e., which
means that the profit or loss from day one will be deferred and Included to the assets or
liability recorded at the initlal carrying amount).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the statement of profit
or loss on a rational basis, only to the extent that it arises frem a change in a factor {including
time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability or
when derecognizing the instruments.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition

All financial assets are recognized on the trading date when the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract which terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the targeted market. Financial asset are initially measured at fair
value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified at fair value through
the statement of profit or loss. Transactions cost directly attributed to the acquisition of the
claseified financlal assets at fair value through the profit or loss are recognized in the
ctatement of profit or loss.

subsequent Measurement

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be

subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's business

model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Specifically:

= Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at
amortized cost;

» Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash
fiows that are SPPI, are subseguently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
Income;

» All other debt instruments (e.g., debt instruments managed on a fair value basis or held
for sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss.,

However, the company may irmevecably make the following selection /designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset on an asset- by-asset basis:

« The Company may lmevocably select to present subsequent changes In fair value of an
equity investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized
by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive
income; and

= The Company may imevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortized cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria as measured at fair value
through the statement of profit or loss, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch {referred to as the fair value option).



Debt Instruments at Ameortized Cost or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the company business model for
managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contractual terms should bring cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition. That principal amount may change aver the life of the financial asset (a.q. if there
are repayments of principal). Interest consists of the consideration for the time value of
money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time, and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The
SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows
that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in eqguity
prices or commaodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPL. An
ariginated or an acquired financlal asset can be a basic lending arrangemeant irrespective of
wihether it is a loan in its legal form.

Assessment of Business Models

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the
classification of financial asset, The Company determines the business models at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. The company’'s business model does not depend on management’s intentions for
an individual instrument; therefore, the business model assessment s performed at a higher
level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

The Company has adopted more than one business model for managing its financial
Instruments, which reflect how the company manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows, The Company's business models determine whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets, or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model
assessment. However, this assessment is not performed based on scenarios that the Company
does not reasonably expect to occur, such as so-called ‘worst case’ or "stress case’ scenarios,
The Company takes Into account all relevant evidence available, such as:

¢ The stated policies and objectives of the portfolio and application of those policles whether
the managemant strategy focuses on obtaining contractual revenues, mainktaining specific
profit rate matching the profit of financial assets with the period of financial liabilities that
finance those assets,

* How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported te the entity's key management personnel;
and

= The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets heild
within that business madel) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are managed;
and

« How the business managers are compensated (e.g., whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assels managed or on the contractual cash flows oollected]).

- 10 -



At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized
financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the
commencement of 8 new business model, The Company reassess [ts business models each
reporting pericd to determine whether the business madels have changed since the preceding

period.

When a debt Instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is
derecognized, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income
Is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity
investment designated as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative gain/loss previously recognized In OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss but transferred within eguity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subject to impairment.

Reclassifications
If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial

assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to
the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting peried following
the change in business model, which results in reclassifying the Company's financial assets.
During the current financial year and previous accounting period, there was no change in the
business model under which the Cempany holds financial assets; and therefore, no
reclassifications were made. The changes in the contractual cash flows are considered under
the accounting policy on the modification and de-recognition of financial assets described
below.

Impairment
The Company recognizes the expected credit loss on the following financial instruments that
are not measured at falr value through the statement of profit or loss:

= Balances and deposits at Banks and financial institutions.

v Accounts receivable.

» Off statement of financial position exposure subject to credit risk (Financial guarantee
contracts issued).

Mo impairment loss is recognized on equity instruments.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets (which

are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance

at an amount equal to:

" 12-maonth ECL, i.e., lifetime ECL that results from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as
Stage 1); or

« 12-month ECL, l.e., lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over the life
of the financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on

that financlal Instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other
financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

=11 =



ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are
measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group
under the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive arising from the
weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s EIR.

For unutilized loan limits, the ECL is the difference between the present value of the difference
batween the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group If the holder of the commitment
draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is
utllized; and

For financial guarantéee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments
te reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt Instrument less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the halder, the client, or any other party.

The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of
loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance
is based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the asset's criginal
EIR, regardiess of whether it is measured on an Individual basis or a collective basis.

Credit-impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assat have occurred. Credit-impaired
financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes
observable data about the following events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

= A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

s The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

« The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

= The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. Instead, the combined effect of
several events may have caused financial assets to become credit impaired. The Company
assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortized cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income are credit-impaired at each reporting date.
To assess I soverelgn and corporate debt instruments are credit impalred, the Company
considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings, and the ability of the borrower to raise
funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower's financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of
granting the concession, the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly, and there are no other indicaters of impairmant. For financial assets where
concessions are contemplated but not granted, the asset is deemed credit-impaired when
thera is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default.
The definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back- stop if amounts
are overdue for 90 days or more. However, In cases where the assets impairment is not
recognized after 90 days overdue are supported by reasonable information.

=12 =



Definition of Default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used
in measuring the amaount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is
based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is 8 component of the probability of default
(PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant
increase in credit risk below.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

« The borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Company; or

* The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full.

Defaults are design appropriately to reflect the different characteristics of different types of
assels.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into
account both gualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on
the type of the asset. For example, in corporate lending, a qualitative indicator used is the
breach of covenants, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as
overdue status and non-payment on another obligation af the same counterparty are key
inputs in this analysis. The Company uses a variety of sources of information to assess default
that is either developed internally or obtained from external sources,

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Company monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments, and financial guarantes
contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether thera has been
a significant increase In credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant
Increase In credit risk, the Company measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather
than 12-month ECL.

The Company does net consider financial assets with “low"” credit risk at the date of issuing
the financial statements that it has not had a significant increase in credit risks. As a result,
the company monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments, and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to impairment for significant Increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has Increased significantly since
Initlal recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date, based on the remaining maturity of the Instrument, with
the risk of a default cccurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current
reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognized. In making this assessmant,
the Company considers both guantitative and qualitative information that Is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit
assessment Including forward-looking information.

Multiple econemic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default at Initial
recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a
different probability of default. It is the weighting of these different scenarios that forms the
basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used to determine whether credit
risk has significantly increased.

=13 -



For corporate lending, forward-locking information includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Company's counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organizations, as well as consideration of various internal and external sources of actual and
forecast economic information. For retail lending, forward-looking information includes the
same economic forecasts as corporate lending with additional forecasts of local economic
indicators, particularly for regions with a concentration to certain industries, as well as
internally generated information of customer paymaent behaviar.

The Company allocates its counterparties to a relevant internal credit risk grade depending
on their credit quality, The guantitative information is a primary indicator of significant
Increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime PO by comparing:

» The remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date; with
» The remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated based on facts and
circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the axposure.

The PDs used are forward looking, and the Company uses the same methodologies and data
wsad to measure the Ioss allowance for ECL.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD
models on a timely basis. However, the Company still considers separately some qualitative
factors to assess if credit risk has increased slgnificantly. For corporate lending, there is
particular focus on assets that are included on a "watch list”. An exposure is on a watch list
once there is a concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated,
For retail lending, the Company considers the expectation of forbearance and payment
holidays, credit scores and events such as unemployment, Bankruptcy, divorce, or death,

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition Is a relative measure, a
given change, in absolute terms, in the PD will be more significant for a financial instrument
with a lower Initial PD than for a financial instrumeant with a higher PD.

As a backstop when an asset becomes more than 45 days past due, the Company considers
that a significant increase in credit risk has occurred, and the asset is in stage 2 of the
impairment model, i.e., the loss allowance 5 measured as the lifetimea ECL.

Madification and De-recognition of Financial Assets

A maodification of a financial asset accurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows
of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and
maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount andfor timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date,

In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would
constitute a madification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash
flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant Is or is
not met {e.g., a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are
breached}).
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The company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the
borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a
high risk of default, or default has already happened, and the borrower is expected to be able
to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the
maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest
repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due {principal and interest forgiveness)
and amendments to covenants. The company has an established forbearance policy, which
applies for corporate and retail lending.

When a financial asset is modified, the company assesses whether this modification results
in de-recognition. In accordance with the company’s policy, a modification results in de-
recagnition when it gives rise to substantially different terms, To determine if the modified
terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms, the company considers
the following:

» Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI,
change In currency or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates,
maturity, covenants. If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

= A quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining
contractual cash flows under the orlginal terms with the contractual cash flows under the
revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognized, the loss allowance for ECL is re-
measured at the date of de-recognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at
that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new
financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on de-recognition. The new
financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-manth ECL except in the rare
occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated- credit impalred. This applies
only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognized at a significant discount to
its revisad nominal amount because there remains a high risk of default which has not been
reduced by the modification. The company monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by
evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower is In past due
status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, and the modification does not
rasult in de-recognition, the company determines if the financlal asset's credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

=  The remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original
contractual terms; with
#« The remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For the modifled financial assets as part of the Company's forbearance palicy, where
maodification did not result in de-recognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Company’s ability
to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of
similar forbearance action, as well as various behavioral indicators, including the borrower's
payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains
significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition, the loss allowance will
continue to be measurad at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne
Ioans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there s evidence of the
borrower's improved repayment behavior following maodification leading to a reversal of the
previous significant increase in credit risk.
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Where a modification does not lead to de-recognition, the Company calculates the
medification gain/loss comparing the gross camying amount before and after the modification
{excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measureés ECL for the modified asset,
where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are induded in
calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset,

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset's
cash flows expire (including explry arising from a modification with substantially different
terms), or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the company neither transférs nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an assoclated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial
asset and recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recagnition of a financlal asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrylng amount and the sum of the consideration received and recelvable and the cumulative
gain/loss that had been recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity |s recognized in profit
or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as measurad at fair value through
other comprehensive income, where the cumulative gainfloss previously recognized in OCI is
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset, This is the case when the Company determines that the
torrower does not have assels or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event.
The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries
resuiting from the Group's enforcement activities will result in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for Expected Credit Losses

Receivables with fixed or determined payments not guoted in an active market are classified
as loans and recelvables. Furthermore, they are initially recognized at amortized cost plus
directly attributable acquisition costs, if any, and are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method less the provision for impalrment (also referred to as
the "expected credit loss provision®) ,If any.

The effective interest method is defined as the method of calculating the amortized cost of
any financial asset and allocating Interest income during the period in gquestion. The
effective Interest rate is the rate that accurately discounts the estimated future cash
receipts during the expected life of the financial asset, or upon completion, through a
shorter period,

Interest income (if any) is recognized through applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest is immaterial,

The Company recognizes a provision for axpected credit losses in receivables and on financial
guarantee contracts, if any. The axpected credit losses are updated on each reporting date to
reflect the changes In creditworthiness since the initial recognition of the relevant financial
Instrument.
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The Company continually records the expected credit losses over the lifetime of the
recelvables. Moreover, the expected credit losses of such financial assets are estimated using
certain systems for the provision based on the Company's past credit loss experience and
adjusted in line with the factors relating to the debtors, general economic conditions, and the
assessment of both the current and future conditions at the date of the financial statements,
including the time value of the asset as required,

For all other financial assets, the Company recognizes the expected credit losses over thelr
lifetime if there has bean a significant increase In credit risk since initial recognition. However,
if there have been no significant changes in the credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss provision for the financial instrument at
an amount equivalent to the expected credit losses for 12 months.

The Lifetime Expected Credit Losses represent the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, the 12-
month Expected Credit Losses denote the partion of the Lifetima Expected Credit Losses that
represent the expected credit losses that result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within the 12 months after the reparting date.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financlal instrument has increased substantially since
initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of default on the financial instrument at
the reporting date with the risk of default on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In this regard, the Company takes into consideration reasonable and supportable
information, both guantitative and qualitative, Including historical experience and future
information available at no cost or major effort, Moreover, future information includes future
prospects for the areas in which the Company's debtors operate and is obtained from the
reports of economic experts, financial analysts, government bodies, think tanks and other
similar organizations, as well as consideration of various external sources and the forecasting
of economic information related to the Company's core operations.

Financial assets are assessed as impaired when one or more events have a negative impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the assets.

The expected credit losses are the discounted outcome of both the Probability of Default {PD),
Loss Given Default (LGD), and Exposures at Default (EAD).The probability of default is the
probability that the debtor will fall to meet his financial obligations either over the next 12
menths (probability of default for 12 months) or over the remaining time period (probability
of default for the lifetime) of the financial liabilities. Moreover, the loss given default
represants the expected exposure at default. In this respect, the Company derives the loss
given default based on the default of the current exposure of the financial instruments and
the likely changes in the allowable amounts in the contract including amertization. The loss
given default for each financial asset is the total of its carrying amount. Meanwhile, the
exposures at default are the expected ioss on the accurrence of default, its expected value
when realized, and the time value of the asset.

The Company expects to apply the approach applied in the parent company of the Arab
Banking Corporation to recognize the expected credit losses over the life of the receivables
as permitted by IFRS (9). Accordingly, non-impaired receivables do not contain a core
financing component within the second stage, and the expected credit losses are recognized
owver their lifetime.
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The objective evidence that the debt Instrument has been impaired is whether there is any
settliement of principal and interest overdue for more than 90 days, or whether there are any
known difficulties in cash flows, including the sustainability of the counterparty's business
plan, low credit rating, and breach of the original terms of the contract and its ability to
improve performance when financial difficulties arise, as well as the deterioration in the value
of collaterals, ete. In this respect, the Company assesses whether there |s objective evidence
of impairment on an Iindividual basis for each asset of individual value, and collectively for
other assets that are not significant on an individual basis,

Provisions for the expected credit losses are presentad as a deduction from the toltal carrying
amaount of the financial assets at amortized cost,

Derecognition_of financial assats

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the asset expire, or the Company has transferred the financial asset with all
significant risks and rewards of ownership to any other enterprise. If the Company has neither
transferred nor rétalned substantiafly the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its recoverable amount in the transferred asset and the related
liabilities that the Company may have to pay. However, if the Company retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the Company continues to
recognize the financial asset.

Upon derecognition of any financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference betwean
the carrying amount of the asset and the considerate receivable or accrued receivable amount
ts recognized In the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilitles and |ssued equity instruments

Debit classification or equity instruments

Debits and equity instruments are classified either as financial liabilities or owners’ equity all
in accordance with the content of the contractual arrangements and definitions of the financial
liabilities and the owners' aquily.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabllities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective yield
method or at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities that are not (1) likely to be
incurred by the acquiree in a business combination, (2) held for trading, or (3} determined at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective yield method.

Other accounts payable initially classified as "financial liabilities" are measured at fair value
less transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
yield methed. Interest expense is recognized on an effective yleld basis except for short-term
liabilities If it is not essential to recognize the yleld,

The effective yield method is the method of calculating the amortized cost of financial
liabilities and the distribution of interest expense over the period, The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments within the expected life
of the financlal obligation or through a shorter period, as appropriate.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes financial liabllities when it recelves exemption from such liabilities,

or the liabilities are cancelled or expire. The difference between the book value of the canceled
liability and the payment against it or the accrued amount is recognized through profit or loss.

Foreign Currency Exchange Gains and Losses
The carrying amount of financlal assets recorded in foreign currency is determined and
translated at the rate prevailing at the end of each reporting period, specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit or loss; and

= For debt instruments measured at fair value through comprehensive income that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortized cost of
the debt instrument are recognized in the statemeant of profit or loss while other exchange
differences are recognized in comprehensive income in the revaluation reserve; and

» If the financial lHabilities are part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or

= If there is a derivative included in the underlying financial or non-financial contract and the
derivative is not closely related to the underlying contract.

Fair Value

The closing (bid) price (purchasing assets/selling liabilities) at the date of the financial
statement reporting In active markets represents the fair value of the financial instruments
that has a quoted price. In case of unavailability of a quoting price nor any trading activity
far some of the financial instruments or unactive markets, fair value is estimatad using a
variety of methods such as:

- Comparing the current market value for the financial instrument with other much alike
financial instrument.

- Analyzing the forecasted future cash flow and deduct the expected cash flows by a
percentage of usage of alike financial instrument.

Options pricing forms.

These pricing methods aims to reflect an expected fair value in markets, considering market
factors and any other related risks or expected beneficiaries may arise in the estimation of
the financial Instrument, morecver in case of existence of instruments that are not expected
to be priced fairly to rely on, the instruments are presented at cost after decommissioning
any impairments in its value.

Land Held for Sale

Land held for sale is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, Impairment losses an
land held for sale I recognized In the statement of profit or loss and statement of
comprehansive income.

Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment, Property and equipment are depreciated when they are ready for use, using
straight-line method over its expected useful life at annual rates from 15% to 25%.
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Where the carrying values of property and equipment exceed the estimated recoverable
amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, and the impairment Is
recorded in the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income.

Useful life of property and equipment is reviewed at each year end; changes in the
expected useful life are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

[ntangible Assets

Intanglble assets are initially measured at cost.

Intangible assets are classified based on assessment of their useful lives to definite and
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives
and records as an expense In the statement of profit or less, while intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment at each reporting date, and impairments
is recorded in the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive iNComie.

Indications of impairment of intangible assets are reviewed and their useful economic lives
are reassessed at the date of the financial statements. Moreover, the useful life of the
intangible assets is reviewed and any, adjustments are reflected in the subsequent periods.

Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized and are expensed in the profit or
loss statement,

ne }
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method except for fees and
interest on doubtful debts, on which interest is transferred to the Interest in suspense account
and not recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Commission income is recognized upon rendering of the related services.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balances with Company's and other
financlal institutions that mature within three months, less due to Company's due within three
manths and restricted cash balances.

Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes.

Current tax is based on taxable profits, which may differ from accounting profits published in
the financial statemants, Accounting profits may include non-taxable profits or tax-deductible
expenses which may be exempted in the current or subsequent financial years, or
accumulated losses which are accepted for tax purpose, or cther nontaxable or deductible
Items.

Taxes are calculated based on the tax rates prescribed according to the prevailing laws,
regulations, and instructions in Jordan,

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be pald or recovered as a result of temporary timing
differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
value of the taxable amount. Moreover, deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the
statement of financial position liability method according to the tax rates expected to be
applled at the tax settlement date or the realization of the deferred tax assets or liabilities.
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Provisions
Provislons are recognized when the Company has a present obligation arising from a past
event and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably
measured.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Lease Contracts

Leasing contracts are classified as financing lease once the terms of the lease states to
transfer all related risks and benefits in eventually the lease ownership transfers to the lessee
essentially, all other leasing contracts are classifiad as operating lease,

L ik ar
Operating lease are recoded In the fixed installments method the lease |Ifetime, Initial
condemned direct cost in the terms and arrangements of the operating lease are added to
the book value of the lease assets and recorded in accordance to the fixed instruments to the
lifetime of lease contract method,

The Company as a Lessee

Obtained assets through financing lease contracts are recorded upon initial recognition at Fair
value in the beginning of the |lease or at current lowest value of instalilments, whichever is
lowest, and |lease payables are recorded at the same current amount due to. Lease
installments are divided between lease expenses and impairment of financing lease payable
to achieve a stable interest rate on the remaining balance of the lease, and it's recorded as
lease expenses directly to the profit or loss stabement.

Operating lease are recorded as expenses according to the fixed rate installments upon
lifatime of the lease contract method.

E_&I;'_:mtlﬂn_trb_eﬂ_ﬁ d revised Standards
MNew and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year
The following new and revised 1FRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2021, have been adupted in these financial statements. The application of
these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current
and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

Inierest Rate Benchmark Reform

In the prior year, the Company adopted the Phase 1 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform—Amendments to [FRS 9/1AS 39 and IFRS 7. These amendments modilfy specific
hedge accounting reguirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges
during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging instruments are amended
a5 a result of the interest rate benchmark reform.

In the current year, the Company adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these
amendments enables the Company to reflect the effects of transitioning from interbank
offered rates (IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest rates (also referred to as “risk free
rates’ or AFRs) without giving rise to accounting impacts that would not provide useful
information to users of financial statements.
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The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements to IFRS 7 for hedging
relationships that are subject to the exceptions introduced by the amendmeants to IFRS 9.

There was no material impact on the amounts reported for the current year for both the Phase
1 and Phase 2 amendments as the company does not have material financial instruments
linked to IBOR.

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 - Amendment to [FRS 16

In the prior year, the Company early adopted Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
{Amendment to IFRS 16) that provided practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical
expedient to IFRS 16. This practical expedient was available te rent concessions for which any
reductien In lease payments affected payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021.

In March 2021, the Board issued Cowvid-I9-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021
{Amendment to IFRS 16) that extends the practical expedient to apply to reduction In lease
payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022,

The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-relabed
rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any
change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession applying IFRS
16 as if the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions oocurring as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met:

= The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
precading the change

« Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022 {a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or
before 30 June 2022 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2022)

= There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease

The adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported
In these financial statements as the Company did not have any leases impacted by the
amendment.
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At the date nfauﬂmriznhnn ul‘ masa ﬂnandal statementﬁ he Company has not applied the

following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Mew and revised |FRSs

Effective date

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020
amendments to IFRS 17)

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
cantracts and supersedes [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

recognition,
Insurance

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance
contracts with direct participation features, described as the
variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if certain
criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage
using the premium allocation approach.

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the
amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and it
explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into
account market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’
options and guarantees,

In June 2020, the Board issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to
address concerns and implementation challenges that were
identified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer
the date of initial application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the
amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023, At the same time, tha Board issued Extension
of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9
{Amendments to IFRS 4) that extends the fixed explry date of
the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023,
For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial
application is the start of the annual reporting periad in which
the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is
the beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of
initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 2B deal with situations
where there 5 a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of
contral of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent's profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in
that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in
any farmer subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent's profit or loss only ta
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
assoclate or joint venture.

A

The amendments ane
applied retrospectively for
annial periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2023,
unless impracticable, In
which case the modified
retrospective approach or
the fair value approach is
applied.

The effective date is
yet to be set. Earlier
application is
permitted.



. New Imt_[_l_vlud IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

The amendments to [AS 1 affect only the presentation of
liabllities as current or non-current in the statement of financlal
position and not the amount or timing of recoagnition of any
asset, [lability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed
about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabliities as
current or noncurrent is based on rights that are in existence at
the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an antity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that rights are
in existence If covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period, and introduce a definition of 'settlement’ to
make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity Instruments, other assels or
SBrVICES,

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations -
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018
Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They
also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of TAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope
of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine
whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an

acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired In a
business combination.
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Effective date
'Thn: amendments are
applied retrospectively
for annual periods
beginning on or after
January 1, 2023, with
early application
permitted.

The amendments are
effective for business
combinations for which
the date of acquisition
is on or after the
beginning of the first
annual period
beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. Early
application is
permitted if an entity
also applies all other
updated references.



Mew and revised IFRSs ____ Effective date
Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and January 1, 2022, with
Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use early application
The amendmants prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of permitted.
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset s avallable for use; i.e. proceeds
while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Conseguently, an entity recognises such sales
proceads and related costs in profit or loss, The entity measures
the cost of those items In accordance with [AS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of "testing whether an
asset is functioning properly’. 1AS 16 now specifies this as
assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the
asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes.,

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive
income, the financial statemeants shall disclese the amounts of
procesds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary
activities, and which line item(s} in the statement of
comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items
of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements In
which the entity first applies the amendments.

The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cost of January 1, 2022, with
Fulfliling a Contract early application
The amendments specify that the 'cost of fulfilling’ a contract permitted.

comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs

that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental

casts of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour

or materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly

to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the

depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and eguipment

used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments apply to conkracts for which the entity has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting peried in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity
shall recognise the cumulative effect of Initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate,
at the date of initial application.
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MNew and revised IFRSs

Effective date

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
Amendments to IFRS 1
International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which
becomes a first-time adopter later than its parent in respect of
acoounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of
the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS
1:016 {a) can now also elect to measure cumulative transiation
differences far all foreign operations ak the carrying amount that
would be included in the parent’s financial statements, based on
the parent’s date of transition to IFRS Standards, If no
adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the
effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired
the subsidiary, A similar election is available to an associate or
joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a).

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the '10 per cenl’ test
to assess whether to derecognise a financial liability, an entity
includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on the gther's behalf.

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and
exchanges that occur on or after the date the entity first applies
the amendment.

IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment remaoves the lustration of the reimbursemeant
of leasehold improvements.

IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment removes the reqguirement In 1AS 41 for entities
to exclude cash flows lor taxation when measuring falr value.
This aligns the fair value measurement in LAS 41 with the
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement o use
internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and enables
preparers to determine whether to use pretax or post-tax cash
flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value
measuremeant,

The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value

measurements on or after the date an entity initially applies the
amendment,
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First-time Adoption of January 1, 2022, with
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permitted.
The amendment Is

effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after January 1,
2022, with early
application permitted.

As the amendment to
IFRS 16 only regards
an illustrative
example, no effective
date is stated.

January 1, 2022, with
early application
parmitted.



MNew and mlndl:FP.Sl

Effective date

Amendments te IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements - Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments change the requirements In IAS 1 with regard
to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all
instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies” with
‘'material accounting policy information’. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information Included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify
that accounting policy information that relates to immaterial
transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need
not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material
because of the nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itsell material.

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain
and demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiallty
process’ described In IFRS Practice Statement 2.

Amendments to IAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors = Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in
accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates.
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are *monatary
amounts in  financial statements that are subject o
measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.
However, the Board retained the concept of changes in
accounting estimates in the Standard with the foilowing
clarifications:

« A change in accounting estimate that results from new
information or new developments is not the correction of an
error

s The effects of a change in an input or a8 measurgment
technique used to develop an accounting estimate are
changes in accounting estimatas if they do not result from
the correction of prior period errors

The Board added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance
on implementing T1AS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The
Board has deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause
confusion in light of the amendments.
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Mew and revised IFRSs Eﬁacl]w:e _tl_ajtn

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax January 1, 2023, with
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single earlier application
Transaction permitted

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial
recognition exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does
not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that
glve rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences may arise on Initial recognition
of an asset and liability in a transactlon that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease liability
and the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at
the commencement date of a lease,

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity Is required to
recognisa the related deferred tax asset and llabllity, with the
recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the
recoverability criteria in 1A5 12.

The Beard also adds an lllustrative example to IAS 12 that
explains how the amendments are applied.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the
beginning of the carliest comparative period presented. In
addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an
entity recognises:

« A deferred tax assel (to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred lax
liability for all deductible and taxable temperary differences
associated with:

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilitles

Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and
the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost
of the related asset

» The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
{or ather component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopted in the Company'’s financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption
of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no material impact on
the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.
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men Esti

Preparation of the financial statements and application of the accounting policies require the
company management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the
amounts of financial assets and financial llabilitles and to disclose potential llabilites. Moreover,
these estimates and judgments affect revenues, expenses, provisions, in general, expected
credit losses, as well as changes in fair value that appear in the statement of comprehensive
income and within shareholders’ equity. In particular, the Bank's management requires
judgments to be made to estimate the amounts and timing of future cash flows. These
estimates are necessarily based on multiple hypotheses and factors with varying degrees of
estimation and uncertainty. Meanwhile, the actual results may differ from estimates due to the
changes arlsing from the conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.

Judgments, estimates, and assumptions are reviewed periodically. Moreover, the effect of the
change in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs if the
change affects only the financial period. On the other hand, the effect of the change in
estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs and in future periods
if the change affects the financial peried and future financial pericds. Management believes
that its estimates in the financial statements are reasonable. The details are as follows:

irm f
Impairment in value of properties acquired is recognized based on recent real estate valuations
by qualified independent evaluatars for calculating the asset impairment, which is reviewed
periodically.

Productive |ifespan of tangible assets and inta
The company management periodically recalculates the useful lives of tangible assets and
intangible assets for calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the general
condition of those assets and estimated future useful lives. The impairment loss is recognized
in the stabterment of profit or loss for the year.

Income tax

The fiscal year is charged with the income tax expense in accordance with the accounting
regulations, laws and standards. Moreover, deferred tax assets and liabilities and the required
tax provision are recognized.

Litigation provision

A provision is made to meet any potential legal liabilities based on a legal study prepared by
the company legal counsel. This study identifies potential future risks and Is reviewed
periodically.

Provision for end-of-service indemnity
The provision for end-of-service indemnity, representing the company aobligations to
employees, is calculated In accordance with the company internal regulations.

Assets and liabilities at cost
Management periodically reviews the assets and liabilities at cost for estimating any impairment
in value, which is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss for the year.

Provision for credit losses

Management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate the amounts
and timing of future cash flows and assess the risks of a significant increase In credit risks for
financlal assets after initial recognition and future measurement information for the expected
credit losses.

The most important policies and estimates used by the company management are detalled in
MNate (5).
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Evaluation of the business model
The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on the results of the principal,
interest payments test on the principal outstanding, and the business model test.

The company defines a business model at a level that reflects how the groups of financial assets
are managed together to achieve a particular business objective, This assessment includes
judgment that reflects all relevant evidence, including how to assess the performance of the
assets and measure their performance, the risks that affect the performance of assets and how
they are managed, and how asset managers are compensated, The company monitors financial
assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income and
derecognized before maturity to understand the reason for derecognition, and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business held. In this respect, control is part
of the company continuous assessment of whether the business model under which the
remaining financial assets are retained is appropriate, and whether it is inappropriate if there
Is @ change in the business model, and therefore, a future change is made in the classification
of those assats.

Significant increase in credit risk

The expected credit loss is measured as an allowance equivalent to the expected credit loss of
12 months for the assets of the first stage, or the credit loss over the life of the assets of the
secand or third stage. The asset moves to the second stage If credit risk increases significantly
since Initial recognition. IFRS (9) does not specify what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of any asset has increased significantly, the
company takes into account reasonable and rellable quantitative and qualitative information.
The estimates used by the company management concerning the significant change in credit
risk that result in a change in the dassification within the three stages (1, 2 and 3) are shown
in detail in note (5).

Establishing groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics

When the expected credit losses are measured on a collective basis, the financial Instruments
are grouped on the basis of common risk characteristics (e.q., instrument type, eredit risk,
collateral type, initial recognition date, remalning maturity period, industry, borrower's
geographic location, etc.). The company monitors the appropriateness of credit risk
characteristics on an ongoing basis to assess whether they are still similar. This is required to
ensure that, in the event of a change in the credit risk characteristics, the asset is properly
reallocated. This may result in the creation of new portfalios or the transfer of assets to an
existing portfolio that better refiects the credit risk characteristics of that group of assets.

Re-division of portfolios and movements between portfolios

The re-division of portfollos and movements between portfolios is more common when credit
risk increases significantly (or when such a large increase is reflected). Therefore, assels are
transferred from expected credit losses of between (12) months to another portfolio or vice
versa, However, this may happen within the portfolios that continue to be measured on the
same basis as expected credit losses for 3 12-month period or a lifetime, but the amount of
the expected credit loss changes due to the varylng credit risks of portfolios.

Models and assumptions used

The company uses various models and assumptions In measuring the fair value of financial
assets as well as in assessing the expected credit loss described In note {(5). The judgment is
applied when determining the best models for each type of asset as well as for the assumptions
used in those models, which include assumptions regarding the main drivers of credit risk.

a, Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The company classifies financial instruments or components of financial assets at initial
recognition either as a financial asset or a financlal liability, or as an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual agreements and the definition of the
instrument. The reclassification of a finandial instrument is subject ta the substance of the
financlal statements and not to its legal form.
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The company shall determine the classification at initial recognition and reassess such
determination, if possible and appropriate, at each date of the statement of financial
position,

When measuring financial assets and liabilities, certain assets and liabilities of the company
are re-measured at falr value for financial reporting purposes, In assessing the fair value
of any assets or labllities, the company uses available observable market data. In the
absence of Tier 1 inputs, the company conducts evaluations using professionally qualified
independent evaluators. Moreover, the company works closely with qualified external
evaluators to develop appropriate valuation and data valuation techniques.

Falr value measurement

If the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities included in the statement of
financial position cannot be obtained from active markets, these fair values are determined
using a range of valuation techniques involving the use of accounting models. If possible,
the entered data for those models will be extracted from the market data. In the absence
of such market data, fair values are determined by making judgments. These provisions
include liquidity considerations and model data such as derivative volatility, longer-term
discount rates, pre-payment ratios and default rates on asset-backed securities,
Management believes that the valuation techniques used are appropriate to determine the
fair value of financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments measured at fair value are generally
obtained by reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and, where
appropriate, recognized pricing models. In the absence of prices, fair values are datermined
using valuation techniques that reflect observable market data. These techniques include
comparison with similar instruments at observable market prices, discounted cash flow
analysis, pricing option models, and other valuation techniques commaonly used by market
participants. The main factors that Management takes into consideration when applying
the model are:

- The expected timing and probability of future cash flows on the instrument where such
cash fows are generally subject to the terms of the instrument, although
Management's judgment may be required where the counterparty’s ability to repay
the Instrument in accordance with contractual terms is in doubt; and

- An appropriate discount rate for the instrument. Management determines the
instrument discount rate at a rate higher than the non-risk rate. In assessing the
instrument by reference to comparative instruments, Management considers the
rmaturity, structure, and degree of classification of the instrument based on the system
in which the existing position is compared. When evaluating tools on a model basis
using the fair value of the main components, Management also considers the need to
make adjustments for a number of factors, such as bld differences, credit status,
portfolio service costs, and uncertainty about the model.

Extension and termination options |n leases

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases. These terms are used
to Increase operational flexibility in terms of contract management, and most of the retained
extension and termination options are renewable by both the company and the lessor.

Determine the duration of the lease

When determining the duration of the lease, management takes into account all the facts and
circumstances that, create an economic incentive for the extension aption, or no termination
option. Extension options (or periods following termination options) are included only In the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated), The
assessment reviewed in the event of a significant event or significant change in the
circumstances affecting this assessment that are under the control of the lesses.
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Key Sources of Uncertainty Estimates
The principal estimates used by Management in applying the company accounting policies that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as
follows:

Determining the number and refative weight of sceparios, the outiook for each type of product
{ market, and the identification of future information relevant to each scenario

When measuring the expected credit loss, the company uses reasonable and supported future
infarmation based on the assumptions of the future movement of the various economic drivers
and the manner in which they affect each ather.

Probability of default

The potential for default is a key input in measuring the expected credit loss. The probability
of default is an estimate of the probability of default over a glven period of time, which includes
the calculation of historical data, assumptions, and expectations relating to futura
circumstances.

|
Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising from default. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the financer expects to collect, taking
into account cash flows from collateral and integrated credit adjustments.

Fair value measyrement and valuation procedures
When estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the company uses

avallable observable market data. In the absence of level (1) inputs, the company conducts
evaluations using appropriate valuation models to determine the fair value of financial
instruments.

Discount the lease payments

Lease payments are deducting using the company's additional borrowing rate ("IBR"). The
management applied the terms and estimates to determine the additional borrowing rate at
the start of the lease.

4, Balances with Banks' and Other Financial Institutions

This item conslsts of the following:

December 31, N
2021 2020
Bl#) D

Balances at local Banks 113,670 619
Balances at forelgn Banks 352,087 610,413
Current accounts with related parties (Note 17) 4,753,009 6,347,592
Balances at other financial institutions 2,804,686 2,729,163
8,023,452 9,687,787

* PBalances with Banks and other financial institutions include an amount of
1D 7,335,048 for the year 2021 (1D 9,616,073 for the year 2020) which represents current
accounts restricted against brokerage trade payables and computed according to the
instructions of the lordan Security Commission, keeping in mind that there is surplus In the
current accounts and that they bear zero interest.
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#  Below is the movement on Balances with Banks and Other Financial Institutions:
Stage 1 Stage 2

_Individual _Individual _Stage 3 Total

o D D 1D
Total balance at the beginning of the year 0,687,787 - - 9,687,787
Additions during the year 1,179,850 - - 1,179,850
Recovered balances (2,844,185) - - (2,844,185)
Total balance at the end of the year 8,023,452 - - 8,023,452

Cash and cash equivalent in the cash flow include the below balances which are included in the
financial position:

__December 31
2021 2020
0 D
Balances at banks and other financial institutions 8,023,452 o.687, 787
Due to Banks (7,799 000% (3.418,442)
224,452 6,269,345
5, Trade Recelvables
. & Becelvables - Spot
This item consists of the following:
December 31,
2021 2020
D D
Trade receivables 4. 385,496 3,862,526
Less: Suspended interest (354,922) (301,311)
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (1,383,240} (1,599.407)
1,561 808

2,647,334 961,

Provision for expected credit losses for the brokerage receivables — spot based on client lavel
has amounted to JD 3,021,960 as of December 31, 2021, compared to JD 1,744,687 as of

December 31, 2020.

The following is the movement on the provision for expected credit losses - spot:

2021 2020
D D
Balance in the beginning of the year 1,599,407 1,506,169
Deductions (surplus) recovered to/from revenue during
the year - net (216,167) 93,238

Balance as at the end of the year 1,383,240 _ 1,599,407

The movement on suspended interest was as follows:

2021 2020
1D b1
Beginning balance ani, 211 271,006
Additlon during the year 53,611 30,305
Ending Balance 354,922 301,311

Below Is the aging schedule of Brokerage Receivables expected to be settled as of

December 31:
Brokerage Receivables Past Due

And expected to be collected

1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days . Total
1D 10 D 1D
2021 1,027,814 326,695 9,027 1,363,536
2020 1,997,227 91,521 29,091 2,117,839

-33-



b. Trade Receivables — Margin

=]

This item consists of the following:

December 31,
2021 2020
D D
Trade receivables = margin 31,163,491 27,352,902
Less: Suspended Interest (297,249) (237,677
Less: Provision for brokerage clients' receivables - margin (2,917,366) (2,656.667)

27,948,876 24,458,558

Expected credit loss on brokerage receivables — margin based on client level has amounted to
JD 2,716,034 as of 31 December 2021 comparing to 1D 2,150,464 as of December 31, 2020.

The following is the movement on the provision for expected credit loss - direct facilities
margin:

2021 2020
10 D
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,656,667 2443795
Deductions recovered from revenue during the year = net 260,695 212,872
Balance at the end of the year 2,917,366 2,656,667
The movement on suspended interest was as follows:
2021 2020
D o
Balance = beginning of the vear 237,677 237,677
Additions during the year 59,572 -
Balance - Ending of the Year 297,249 237 677

i ri
Definition of default implementation and |ts processing mechanism:
The Company applies IFRS {9) by identifying Internal indicators and standards, according to
which non-performing credit facilities are manually Individually classified on a case-by-case
basis according to their current status. This is reflected in the company’s internal system and
Is embodied in the following classifications (substandard, doubtful, and bad debts).

1. The Company's implementation of the concept of default:

The Company’s Board of directors adopts an internal policy regarding the classification of
defaults and provisions are booked in accordance with it.

2. Default processing mechanism:
- Taking legal action when it comes to collecting the Company’s rights.

- Moving non-performing accounts to performing accounts for each cas separately according
to its current status,
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The Governance Implementation of IFRS (9) reguirements, including the
responsibilities of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Executive Management
to ensure compliance with the requirements of this standard.

The Company shall adopt the policies related te the standards and methodologies for
complying with IFRS (2) requirements in accordance with the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan, Which will review the Calculation results of the expected credit losses on a
pericdically bases and stay on top of any developments and updates related to the results,
as well as the principles and bases of calculation.

The Company’s Credit Committee approves any exceptions and cases where provisions for
expected credit losses are been booked against It and the resulted amendments to of the
calculation on the expectad losses which s required according to have clear and documented
justifications.

A steering committee has been formed at the parent company headed by the General
Manager and the membership of each of the heads of the executive departments concernad
with the application in addition to the membership of the CEO of the company, where this
committee ks responsible for implementing the standard and general supervision of the
implementation mechanism and ensuring that the concerned departments implement this
plan each accerding to The competence to adhere to the roles assigned to them and the
implementation of the procedures refated to the Implementation of the steps and stages of
implementing this standard in the company and the company, presenting the results of
completion first-hand, and coordinating with the various credit committees in the company
to obtain the necessary approvals for cases that require an amendment to the results of
calculating the size of the expected losses.

Definition and Calculation Mechanism of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at
Default (EAD), and Rate of Loss Given Default (LGD)

Accordance with IFRS (9), the expected credit loss measurement model has been applied
within the following framework:

Expected credit loss = size of exposure at default * client’s probability of default * rate of
loss at default,

Credit exposure at default has been calculated For banks and financial Institutions credit
exposures, as well for credit facilities granted to the Company's customers within the margin
financing and cash financing products,

The rate of loss at default for credit exposures related to banks and financial institutions is
calculated using the s!};sterns adopted by the external supplier, Moody's, assuming the
occurrence of default after the calculation of the recoverable amount of the credit exposure
and the timing of the recoverable amount, taking into account the collaterals provided
against the credit exposure and the applicatlon of the discount rates determined in
accordance with the internal standard adopted by the Company, This is implemented in
cocrdination with the parent company’s concerned parties in this regard.

The expected credit loss caleulation is based on a cumulative level of the eredit portfolio
granted by the Company for margin financing and cash ﬁnan::ing products, as well as other
products, Such portfolios or products carry similar credit risk and share several components
(type of product, quality of collateral provided, purpose of grants, sector, etc.

The stress tests required in accordance with the standard have been adopted, These tests
are part of the expected credit loss calculation process, Moreover, three scenarios have been
adopted to study future forecasts and their effect on the variables of the expected credit
joss measurement model, These scenarios represent the normal scenario, worst-case
scenario, and best-case scenario, whereby the weighted probability value of these scenarios
has been adopted.

For calculating credit loss in the third stage (bad debts), adoption of the Company's internal

policy has continued as regards the classification of non-performing debts and the calculation
of the provisions thereon and acceptable discount rates of collaterals.
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Determinants of the significant change in the credit risk on which the Company relied
in calculating the expected credit losses

To calculate the cradit loss of the existing credit exposures within the Company's assets in
all types, such as balances at banks and other on an individual basis, where approving and
determining the credit risk significant changes (the high level of credit risk) has been
adopted by the company.

A decline or decrease in the actual internal credit rating of the borrower (banks) according
to the internal rating system applied by the parent campany compared to the Internal rating
of the borrower / credit exposure at granting.

Accounts that need to be closely monitored as set by the Company.

The Company's policy in identifying the common elements (characteristics) with the
parent company based on which the credit risk and the expected loss are measured
on a collective basis.

The expected credit loss calculation on a cumulative basis for the granted credit portfolio by
the Company regarding margin financing and cash financing products, as well as other
products, Such portfolios or products carry similar credit risk and share several components
{type of product, quality of collateral provided, nature of financing, purpose of funding,
sector; etc; ).

The expected credit loss of the credit portfolios granted by the Company, which are the
financing of shares within the margin financing and cash finandng products, has been
calculated for Stage 1 and Stage 2, Which concluded that the degree of risk for the client’s
active portfolios is classified under Stage 1 is one notch less than the risk degree of the
country (Jordan), Meanwhile, the risk degree of the classified clients under Stage 2 is four
notches less than the degree of the country (Jordan).

Regarding the maturity of credit facilities, the maturity of Margin financing product is
considered one year, While 4 years were added to the facilities classified within the second
stage, for the cash-financing product to be 3 months, As for the loss given default, it is
considered 5% for customers classified in the first stage (calculated according to the
coverage ratio of collaterals to the existing credit facilities), 10% for customers classified
the second stage, Moreover, the third Stage classified Portfolios (Defaulted accounts); the
Company follows the approved internal policy in this regard.
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Major/Key economic indicators used by the Company to calculate the Expected Credit

loss (PD)

The parent company has used the external supplier Moody's to calculate the expected credit
loss (ECL) Relying on three scenarios to study the future forecasts and its Impact to the
variables of the credit loss measurement model, Using the economic factors referred in the
economic growth rates in Jordan and the stock price index.The movement on direct credit
facilities on a collective basis as of December 31:

Balance at the beginning of the year
{spat - margin}

Mew exposars during the year

Exposures collected during the year

Heclassified to Stage 1

Reclassified to Stage 2

Reclassified to Stage 3

Cumulative offoct on credit exposures

due to changes in the dassilications

bebhwean stages

Effect of adjustments

Total balance at year-cnd

Balance at the beginning of the year
(spal - margin}

Heaw exposess during the year

Exposures collected during the year

Reclazsified o Sage 1

Redassified (o Sage 2

Redassiied o Stage 3

Curmulathse affect an oredil exposures

due W changss in the classifications

between stages

Effert of adjustiments

Total bialance A year-gmnd

FLEFES
Stage 1 - Stage 2 Hat Movernsnt
Individual Collective  Individual Collective Stage 3 on Exposers
D n D 1D n 0

22,155, 062 - 5165215 3,595,151 31,215,428
- 8,842,548 - 1,382,250 230 10,225,068
- [4,.507 650} - (1,594,259}  (327,301) {6,429, 210)

(1,225,617) - 1,231,628 (&,011}
. 2 (2,496,528) 2,496,528 .
- 25,264,343 3,688,346 6,058,507 35,001,286
(133,388) - 991,692 (320603) 537,701
25,130,955 4680008 5,737,994 35,548,987

2020
Stage 1 Stape & et Movement
individual  Collective  Individusl Colflective Stage 3 on Exposers
Jix il s i D o

- 1G6,BBD,790 . 8,320,354 4,014,577 29,215,721
- 7,830,283 - 2 687 252 BG3E 222
- {3,111,869) . (1,958,364) (446,457)  (5.516,690)
= 1,184,136 - (1,184,136) 5 =
= (546, T15] - 546,515 . -
- | 165) 5 {326,614} 326,779 -
22,236 460 - 6.205.642  3.6895,151 33337253
{81,398} - (1,040,427} - (1,121,825}
- 72,155,062 . 5,165,215 3,895,151 31,215,428
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Total movement on expected credit losses (ECL) for direct credit facilities during the year:

Balance at the begirining of the year

[mipairment loss an new exposures
during the year

Recovered impairment loss an

exposures paid during the year

Reclassified to Stage 1

Reclassified bo Stage 4

Reclassified to Stage 3

Cumulative effect on impairment loss
due to changes in the classifications
between stages

Effect on provision due to adjustments

Total expectad credit loss balance at

year-gnd

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impalment |oss on New exXposLRes
during the year

Becovered impairment loss on
exposures paid during the year

Reclassified to Stage 1

Reclassified to Stage 2

Reclassified to Stage 3

Cumulative effect on impalirment loss
due to changes in the cdassifications
between stages

Effect on provision due to adjustments

Total expected credit loss balance at
yaar-end

2021
Het
Stage 1 Stage 2 Mawement
Individual Collective [Individual Collective Stage 3 on ECL
1D 1D i} 1D T3] i)
- 47 996 - 849,898 3,358,180 4,256,074
- 10,886 - 370,928 - 381,814
- (20,567) - {387,103} (329,294) (736,964)
- [262,5M) - 262,610 {16} -
- - (753,361) 753,361 -
= {(224,279) - 342,972 3,782,231 3,900,924
- 259,499 - 436,712  (296,529) 399,682
- 35220 - 779,684 3,485,702 4,300,606
2020 -
Met
Stage 1 ; Stage 2 Movemnent
Individual Collective Individual  Collective  Stage 3 on ECL
- Io i[¥] [ D 1o %)
- 31,365 - 522,000 3,395,599 3,949,964
. 19,9472 - 521,315 8,379 549 636
- (3,988) - (159,103}  (343,502) (506,682)
- 2,319 : (2,319) . =
- (17,236) - 17,236 - -
. (159} - {296,545) 296,704 -
32,243 - 602,495 3,358,180 3,992,918
15,753 - 247,403 - 263,156
- 47,99 B49,808 3,358,180 4,256,074

- 38 -



The total movement on the suspended interest on direct credit facllities during the year:

2021

Ket Movemsnt
Stage 1 Sthge & Suspended
Individuad Collective Individual Collectiva Stage 3 Interast
o o i [ o 1 § 5]

Balance at beginning of the year - - - - 538,588 538,948
Suspended (nbaresk on hew
exposures during the year - = - ~ 125 229
Suspended Interest ransferred o

revenue due o oxposunes paid

durtng the year . - - - = .
Reclassified to Stage 1 - = = - -
Reclassified o Sm@ge 2 - - - . {30, 0oy {30,093)
Reclassified to Stage 3 - - . = 143,047 143,047
Cumulative etfect on suspesxhed

interest due o changes in the

classifications Detvesan stages Lo " = - 652,171 652,171
Effect on suspended Interest due to
adjustrents - . - : - .
Suspended Interest on bad dett
exXphilres = , - - = =
Adjustraents dee bo changes m
curmency exchanga rabes £ . - . = =

i preried intarast bal £ e
E::: " e - - - - 652,171 652,11

2020

Nak Movemeant
Siage 1 Stage 2 Suspended
Individual Collective Individual  Collective  Stage 3 Interast
30 B 0 0 i T

Balance at beginning of the year - - = . S08, 683 S0R GE3R
Suspended (nberest on mew
EXposSWES during the year - - - . 30,305 30,305

Suspended Intorest Transferred to

revenues due to exposisres paid

during the year - - - - - -
Reclassified to Stege 1 - - - - - -
Reclassified to Stage 2 - - - - - -
Reclaszified to Stage 3 . = . e . -
Cumulatve effoct an suspended

inmerest due to chanoes in the

clazsifications betwoan stages : - - . 538,588 538,984
Effect on suspended Interest dus Lo
adpustments . - - . .
Suspended interest on bad debd
EXpasUres - - - .
Adfustrments dee to changes i
currency sxchange rabes B . - 3 .

suspanded interest balance al -
:ﬁjﬂd g " - - - 538,988 538,988
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Disclosure of the movement on the expected credit loss (ECL) for direct credit facilities

during the year:

Balance at the Baginning af the year

Impairmont loss on new exposures during the year

Recowered impairment Ioss on exposeres pald during the year
Reclassified to Stage 1
Reclassified o Stage 2
Redassified Lo 5tage 3

Effect on the prowision -as at yesr-end- due to changes in the
classifications batwesn Steges during the year

Changes des bo adjustmants

Bad dobi fadlities
Totdl Balance at yasr-end

Reclassifications:

Provviston {Individusl Leval)
Provision (Collective Level)

Batance at beginning of the yoar

Imipalrment loss on new axposures during the yaar

Recoversd irmpairment loss on exposures pald during bhe year
Reodassified to Stage 1
Reciassified bo Stage 2
Reclassified to Stage 3

Effect an the provizian -as at year-end- due to changes in the
classifications bebwean stages during tha yoear

Changes dus to adjistments

Bad debl facilities
Tatal Balence at year-end

Reciassifications;
Provision {Individual Level)
Provision [Collective Levet)

2021

Corporatons Indiwiduais Total

o o 0
1,141,426 3,114 648 i, 256,074
137,138 294,676 3Bl E14
(28,611} [708,353) (736,964}
1,249,953 2,650,971 ER LR
(59, 351) 459,035 95,682
1,150,600 3,110,006 4 300, 606
1,190,600 3,110,006 4,300,606

2020
Corporations Individuals Total
o 1o 8l

1,132 300 2,827,504 3,940,964
65,370 AE4, 266 549,636
{39, 996) [5G, 68E) (506, 662)
1,147 744 2,845,174 3,992 918
{6,318) 269,474 263,156
1,141,426 3,114,648 4,756,074
1,141,436 3,114,648 #4,256,074
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The total distribution of direct credit facilities according to the economic sectors and to the
stages of implementation of IFRS (9) for financial instruments.

2021 R
Skage L Stage 2 Total
Sector Individual Collective Individual Collective Stape 3 Individuabhy
o iT¥) i+ o o o
Trade sector 2014 9% = - 2,04, 554
Real-estate sector 2,502,380 - GED, 742 - 3,192 1322
Agricultural sector 99,309 . - - SO, W
Stocks and bonds sector 168,323 - & 1,037,016 1.325.33%
Incividunl sechor - 17,935 082 - 2 966,970 3,861,089 24,763,141
Orther Sectors . 1,490 807 - 1.023.326 739,889 3,254,172
Total 25,130,955 - 4,680,038 5. 737,994 35, 5485987
_ 2030
Ciage 1 Stage 2 Total
Sechor Individual Collective Indiviclual Coflective Stage 3 Individually
o B[] o o ilv] i
Financial sactor . - - 1,605,361 = 1,605,361
Trade sechor - 2,007,909 . - - 2,007,909
Roal-esiabs sachor = 3,534,514 = - = 3,834,514
Agriculturs sector - = = - -
Stocks and bonds sector - 663 583 = - 1,137,016 1,800,599
Individual sackor - 15,346,070 . 3,555,854 7,758,135 21,664,059
Dther sactors = 302 986 - o - 302 H86
Total 22,155,062 . 5165215 3,895,151 31215428

The total distribution of direct credit facilities according to the geographical sectors and to the stages of
implementation of IFRS (9) for financial instruments.

2021
Stago 1 _Stage 2
Lactor Inaividual Collective Incividual Colkective Stage 3 Total
D o o v o o
Insida the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan 25,130,555 - 4,680,038 5.7437,954 35,548,987
Other Middle Eastern Sounties - = ] . =
Europe . - = -
Africo . - ] -
Linited States of America = x 5 )
Dither couitries - PSR, - = s
Total 25,130,955 4,680, 034 5,037,984 35 548 507
2020
Stage 1 . Stage 2
Serter _ Individual Collective Infvidual Colbeciiye Stage 3 Tokal
i [ i il i[5 b ls}
Inside the Hasheméte Kingdom of 22,155,062 - 5,165,215 3,895,151 31,215428
Jordan
Other Middle Esstern countrias S =) 5
Eurape & o - - ¥
Asia - - - -
Africa . & 2 . -
United States of America - - - . -
Other countries - - - . - N -
Total = 24,155,062 - 5,165,215 3,695,151 31216438
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Disclosure of the distribution of the direct credit facilities and financing according to the
Company's internal credit rating categories for corporations;

2021 2020
Stage 1 Stoge 1 Stmpe 2 Stage 2 Staga 3
Individunl  Coflective Individual — Collective Total Tatal
Credit rating classifications based on
the Comgany's internal system: Bl Do o i i 1o il v}
i . - . z 2 i
1 - = - - =
: - = =
4 z s = E
5 - - = - - =
& 7,195,873 - - = 7195873 6, H0E 553
T - - 1,713,068 = 1,713,068 1,605 361
8 = £ a i = 2 H
9 - - - - 735,889 733,880 =
10 - - - - - - -
11 » = = = 1L,130016 1,137,016 1,137,006
Total - 7195873 - 1,713,068 1,876,905 10,785,846 9,551,368

Disclosure af the movement on the direct credit facilities and financing related to corporations is as
follows:

201
Stage 1 ) Stage 2
Ineffiviciusal Colbaciia Tzl Collpctive Stage 3 Tatal
D o i) I Jo n
Total exposuras ak the beginning
of the year - 6, BOB 992 - 1,605,361 1,137,016 9,551,369
Granted Tacilites during the year . 2,015 618 - 715,804 = 2,735 4228
Paid racillies during the year - (1,632,737} - . (1,632,737}
Recimsgifiad to Sage 1 a - L £ - =
Recisssified to Stage 2 - - & ; = i
Reclassified 1o S5tage 3 : - = {739,869) T35, 685 =
Cumulative affect on exposures dus to
changas in dasifications batween
stages - 7,1954873 - 1,581,276 LETR905 10,654,054
Changes dueé ta adjustments . - - 131,792 . 131,792
Bad debts exposures - - - L . *
Adjustments dise to chandes In
cumrency exchange retes - - = = - =
Total cyposures at yesr-end . 7,105 873 - 1,713,068 1,876,905 10,785 646




Disclosure of the movement in the expected credit loss (ECL) for corporate direct credit faciiities:

. 2021

Stage 1 _Stage 2
Individual _ Collective Individual Collective Stage3  Total
10 D i) 1D D o

Balance at the beginning of

the year - 15,121
Impairment loss on new

exposures during the yaar - 2,638
Becovered impairment

losses on exposures paid

during the year - {7.481)
Reclassified bo Stage 1 - . .
Reclassified to Stage 2 - . - - . -
Reclassified o Stage 3 - {2,397) 2,347 -
Cumulative effect on

impairment losses due to

changes In dassifications

between stages
Effect on provision due to

adjustments - - - [59,353) - {5%,353)
ITrmpairment loss on bad debt
BR[MISUTES - - . - - .
Adjustments due to changes

in currency exchange rates . 5 a = :
Total expected credit losses e

al year-end : 10,278 - 155,449 1,024,873 1,190,600

103,829 1,022,476 1,141,426

134,500 - 137,138

(21,130 . (28,611)

10,278 - 214 BOZ 1,024 B73 1,249,953

Disclosura of the distribution of direct credit facilities and financing according to the Bank's inbernal
credit mating for individuats:

IF_I:_II 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Colleckive Individual Collective Tatal Tatal
Credit rating clasaificationg
based on the Compady’s
intermal sysbam: D fin] i} D i D o
2z . o . - .
3 z - - - =
i = " - = -
5 2 = 5 ; . 5 z
6 - 17,935,082 : . - 17,935,082 15,346,070
7 - - - 1,966,570 - 2,966,970 3,559,854
g = . = = -
-] = = 2 c x 5
10 - - - . 1,756,635 1,756,639 326,818
11 - - - = 2,104,450 7,104,450 2,431,317
Tolal - 17,935,062 - 2,966,970 3,861,089 24,763,141 EI..'&M.-HS'E'
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Disclosure of the movement in direct credit facilities and financing related to individuals is

as follows:
2021
Stege: 1 L . Stage3
Indiwvidual Caollective Il'lEI’-.Ildﬂ.lﬁl Collective Tatal
0 1D 1D 1 D 10
Total exposwres at the beginming
af the year - 15,346,070 - 3,559,854 2,756,135 21,664,059
Facifities granted during the
year - 6,822,930 - Gi66, 48156 230 7,489, 646
Facilities paid during the year - (2,874,913) = [1,554,2549) (327,301}  (4,796,473)
Reclassified o Stage 1 = - - - - .
Beclassified to Stage 2 - (1;225617) . 1,211,628 {6,011} -
Reclassified to Stage 3 = a - (1,756,639 1,756,630
Curmulative effect on exposures
due to changes in
classifications betwesn stages - 18,068,470 . 2,107,070 4,181,692 24,357,232
Changes dua to adjustrments - {133,386) . 6549 500 (320,603) 405,900
Bad debts exposires E - . o = =
Adjustments due to changes in
currency exchenge rates - - - - + -
Total exposunes ot year-and - 17,935,082 - 2,966,970 3,861,089 24,763,141
Disclosure of the movement in expected credit less (ECL) for Individuals' direct credit facilities:
2021
__ Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual  Collective Individual  Collective Total
i D 1o D I 0
Balance at the beginning of
the year - 32,875 - T4, DED 2,335,704 3,114,648
Impainment [ass on new
exposires during the year - B, 248 - 236,478 - 244,767
Recoversed impairment
lasses on paid exposures
during the year - (13,086) . (365,577) {3329,204) (708, 353)
Reclassified to Stage 1 - - . - . -
Reclassified to Stage 2 - (262, 594) . 263 610 (1B} -
Reclassified (o Stage 3 - - - {750, 964 750, 564 =
Cumulative effect on
impairment losses due to
changes in classifications
botwesn slages - {234,557} - 128,1M0 2,757,358 2 650,971
Effect on provision due to
adjustments - £50,4%0 . 456,065 { Fab 529) 459,035
Impairment loss on bad debt
exposures - - - - -
Adjustments due be changes
im currency exchange rates . - - . - -
Total expected credit losses =
at year-end - 24,947 624,235 2,460,829 3,110,006




lmt.l

L0L'SBE'E

LG66'SHS'E L66'TED'Z = - - - LEE TED'Z 5 THE LEL'S [EI0L
ISP AP | ZE5Z5E 1 B0V 695 | - = - - BOVEITT - 096 TE0°E 10ds - $3|geAa0a. ebesanosg
OSE LEE'E SHEEE'T GES ' TEF - £ - . [l - TEOSTLE Uil - s3|gealaaa sbemEyoug
ac i at ar ac L ai ar at at
103l SEEQUEIENS  SEIURIEND  JSLI0 SDUIIB &~ 2lelsE-|E@y  SERIUBIENS SANUNISS  SAIUBIENGD s2i10e TE ST
S50 JpaLD Jaye o puw Hueg B GEIANIEL ysed JpaId (B0l
pajaadxg sBHYPE] 13N SNjEA [BI0) SRIIYBA a|geydacry
BNIEN JIB SeajUEIEnD
:(6) SH4l 4o sjuawadnbay ayy o3 buipsoooe £ afels WIYNM pals)| S8y 1padd Palg 4
905" D0E" 21T o' SLE'TOE' TE - - ErR'Z06'TE LBERPS S (30l
OFEEBE'T  L09Z5E7  GZOZEDE - = - : BIEZEOE - BB GHE ¥ jods - sajgeazos abeianoag
QOE'LT6'T S EST'T S0 0LREE - = - * ar0’0LE'8T 16" E9T I uiburw ~ sa|gesjsaa afeiaxyolg
ar ar ac ar ac ar ac ac ac ac
(103 SaSUBIENE) SaFjuEdens 1230 SAUDE  ElSa-ERY SSslURIEMD)  SAINUNDSS SIRUBRIENS  S3RI0Ed (I3
5507 JjPadD JayE Jo pue Hueg QAR YseD Wpasd 2oL
plaadsEg ELIHIIECE R SNIRA [BJ0 ] R ER sQeydanny

aMNjEn J1B4 S=alUelens)

1(6) SHdl 4o syuawaunbad ay] o) Buipioooe sapRe) Jpaud BI0L &

rER31138) pads 19aup Jsujebe SjRJAIR)(CD JO BN(EA JIR) 343 JO UOIINGISIP BUYL



5
This item consists of the following:

Prepald expenses

Refundable deposits

Settlement guarantee fund contribution
Employee receivables

Prior years tax deposits

Other

r

December 31,
2021 2020

D D
64,278 61,821
1,420 1,420
25,000 25,000
37,304 48, 738
40,963 -
494 293
169,459 137,272

This Iltem represents lands seized by the Company as repayment of due debts of financial
brokerage clients, consisting of 9,916 squara meters of land located in the Um Rummaneh
area, South of Amman, held for sale with a value of 1D 1,153,658 and another land with an
area of 83,442 square meters located in the Quneitra region, South of Amman, hald for sale

with a value of 1D 1,153,588,

Cost of land
Provision for impairment loss

The movement in the impairment loss provision was as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Balance - year-end

- df -

December 31,
2021 2020
D D
2,307,246 2,307, 246
(610,512} (610,512)
1,696 734 1,696,734
2021 2020
i[5} Ik
610,512 457,396
- 153,116
610,512 610,512




=

This Item consists of the following:

For the year anded December 31,
2021:
Comt:

Balance = beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals

Balance - year-end

Balance - beginning of the year
Depredation for the year
Disposals

Balance - year-end

et book value

as of December 31, 2021

Annual depredation rate %%

For the year ended December 31,
2020;

Cost;

Balance - beginning of the year
Additions

Balance - year-end

Balance = beginnimg of the year
Depreciation for the year
[isposal
Balance - year-end
MNet Book Value
as of December 31, 2020
Annual depreciation rate %

Furnitiere
and Office Leasehokd
Fistures  Equipment Wehicles Improvaments Total
& 1D o D o
336,903 305,348 24,000 88,377 F54, 628
= IrWS T. 1.?55
{10,002) (28,108) = = (38,108}
__ 3268901 275,547 24,000 BB 377 719,225
332,633 265,351 23,9498 B8,371 710,553
1,731 13,217 - . 14 948
{5,987) (28,073} - - (38,060)
324 377 250,695 23998 BB,371 BHT 441
2,524 29,252 2 4] 31,784
15 25 15 25
336,503 268,416 24,000 BE. 37T F17,696
- 36,932 : - 36932
336,903 305,348 24,000 B8, 377 754,628
331,001 257,306 20,803 B8,371 597, 481
1,632 8,245 3,185 = 13,072
332,633 265,551 23,998 BB, 371 710,553
4,270 39,797 | 2] 44,075
15 25 15 25

- Fully depreciated property and equipment amounted to 1D 666,131 as of December 31, 2021
{JD 693,206 as of December 31, 2020).

o



Thig ltem consists of the following:

Software
December 31
2021 2020
Caost: o o
Balance at the beginning of the year 127,476 118,517
Additions 11,950 8,259
Disposals (5,978) :
Balance - year-end 133,448 127,476
2021 2020
Accumulated Amortization: 1D 1D
Balance - beginning of the year 109,879 104,682
Amortization for the year 6,732 5,197
Disposals {5,973} 3
Balance at year-end 110,638 109,879
Net book value 22,810 17,597
20% 20%

- Fully-amortized computer software amounted to 1D 95,657 as of December 31, 2021 (ID
496,461 as of December 31, 2020).

10. Due to Banks
This iterm consists of the following:
December 31,
2021 2020
D 1o
Arab Banking Corporation — Bahrain {MNote 17) 7,799,000 3,190,500

Arab Banking Corporation — Jordan

7,799,000

227,942

3,418 442

The overdraft limits are as follows:

Granted limit Interest rate

10 G
Arab Banking Corporation - Bahrain 11,344,000 1.29
Arab Banking Corporation - Jordan 1,255,000 6.5
Capital Bank Jordan - Current debit 1,400,000 8
This item consists of the following:

December 31,
2021 2020

o D
Accrued expenses 248,177 157,223
Litigation provision 50,000 50,000
Others 31,287 33,196
Provision for expected credit losses - indirect credit facilities 2,769 2,068
Accrued dividends (Note 14) 1,200,388 1,172,651

1,532,621 1,415,138
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Disclosure of the movement in indirect credit facilities on a collective basis as of December

31.2021:

2021

Stage 1

Stage 2

Balance at the beginning of the
WEAF
Facilities granted during the year
Facllities paid during the year
Reclassified to Stage 1
Beclassified o Stage 2
Reclazsified to Stage 3
Effect on provision = as of yiesr-
end - due to changes in
classifications between stages
during tha year
Total

I

Individizal

Collective

.....

928,498
(504,791)

i8]

D

2,735
77,452
(2,735}

Stage 3

Total

ha]

[] i i i i 1

D
931,233

534,181
(607,526)

e —

780,436

77,452

857,888

Total movement on expected credit losses for indirect credit facilities during the year:
2021

Sechor

Stage |

el

Individual

Collective

Individual

Collective

Stage 3

Balamce at the beginning of the
year
Impairment loss on new
exposures during the year
Recovered impairment loss
on exposures paid during the
yaar
Reclassified to Stage 1
Reclassified to Stage 2
Reclassified to Stage 3
Effect on provisicn — as of year-
end = due ko changes in
classifications between stages
duiring the yesar
Tokal

D

¥ F F B

e
2,009

BOG

(1,522)

D

I
59
1,676

(59)

Ji

LI I I

Tatal

ills]
2,068
2,282

{1,581}

14ﬂ93

1,676

2,769
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12, Income Tax

a.

The movement in the income tax provision is as follows:
2021 2020
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 463,758 337,486
Income tax pald (511,160) (400,058)
Income tax expense for the year 579,118 526,330
Refundable prior year tax deposits 40,963 -
Balance — End of the year 572,679 463, 758
Income tax expensa shown in the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
consists of the following:
2021 2020
o o
Income tax expense for the year 575,118 526,330
Deferred tax assets effect - net {12,665) {11,621}
566,453 514,709
The movement in deferred tax assets during the year was as follows:
2021 2020
D 1D
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,152,280 1,180,659
{Recovered) additions during the year - net 12,665 11,621
Ending Balance 1,204,945 1,192,280
Deferred tax assets have been calculated based on the new tax rates in accordance with
the income tax law which equaled to 28% as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Summary of the reconciliation of accounting and taxable profit:
2021 2020
D D
Accounting profit 1,813,313 1,745,304
Non-deductible expenses 467,820 835,102
Tax-deductible expenses ___{212,853) (700,656)
Taxable profit 2,068,280 1,879,750
Statutory income tax rale 28% 28%
Effective income tax rate 28% 30%

The income tax provision on profit for the year has been calculated in accordance with the
Jordanian Income Tax Law No. (34) of the year 2014,

The Company has reached a final settlement with the Income Tax Department up until the
year 2020, including the year 2015, The Company’s income tax return for the current year
was submitted to and reviewed by the Income and Sales Tax Department, who issued a
decision to claim additional taxes amounting to JD 44,370. The Company filed an objection to
the appraisal before the Arbitration Panel, whose decision was to support the appraisers
decision. The company then resorted to disputing the appraiser's decision before the Tax
Court of First Instance, who issued a decision to reverse the evaluator’s decision to the
Company’s benefit. Moting that the Company has paid the additional taxes to avoid paying
penalties in case they lost the case. The Court of Cassation has issued a decision in faver of
the company, definitively rejecting the appraiser's decislon. Thus, an amount of 1D 40,963
was credited to the company's account with the Income and Sales Tax Department.

- B =



13. Shareholder's Equity
a. Paid-up Capital

“The Company's pald-up capital amounted to 1D 15,600,000 divided in to 15,600,000 shares

at a par value of JI* 1 per share.

Leserve
This account represents 10% of the annual profit before tax accumulated over the years and

is not available for distribution to partners.

¢. Declared Divide

nds Payable
The Management Committee agreed in its meeting held on December 23, 2021 to distribute
an amount of JD 1,200,3B8 from the Company's retained earnings to the partner (Arab

Banking Corporation- Jordan).

On December 13, 2020, the Management Committee approved in its board meeting ko
distribute an amount of JD 1,172,651 from the Company’s retained earnings to the partner

(Arab Banking Corporation- Jordan}.
i
The details of this item are as follows:

Beginning Balance

Profit for the year

Transferred toffrom statutory reserve
Accrued partner dividends

Balance - End of the year

i
This item consists of the following:

Local market trading commissions
Intermational market trading commissions
Fegional market trading commissions

ive Ex
This item consists of the following:

Salaries and bonuses

Social security contribution

Other employee expenses

Training

FPostage and telephone

Management committee transportation and bonuses
Fees and licenses

Legal fees

Litigation fees

Hospitality

Software subscriptions

Malntenance

Banking commissions

Life insurance and medical expenses
Stationery and printing

Rent expense

Compensation for broker mistakes
Professional fees

Stamps and Letters of Guarantee commissions
Arab Banking Corporation - Jordan service fees (Note 17)
Vehicles expenses

Other

- 51 -

2021 2020
iy 0
2,914,850 3,031,476
1,246,860 1,230,595
[131,331; (174,520
(1,200,388 (1,172,651
2,780,031 2,914,890
2021 2020
10 10
567,163 252,140
588,014 1,101,168
26,906 35,089
1,182,083 1,388,397
2021 2020
0 D
1,173,194 1,031,947
112,776 110,824
13,949 14,770
3,024 1,298
156,065 162,285
71,760 71,760
40,826 38,986
11,122 11,872
3 50,000
7,781 4,277
35,603 33,978
15,354 20,152
15,586 17,196
50,306 48,321
12,216 9,680
9,950 7,650
1,615 12,240
18 968 18,968
18,120 17,730
44,383 H
1,336 755
39,370 41,291
1,653, 344 1,725,980




17, Related Party Transactions

Related parties represent the partner (Arab Bank Corporation Company), sister companies, and
key management, Prices and conditions of these transactions are approved by the Company's
management,

These related parties’ transactions are within the normal course of business and are subject to
commercial interest rates and commissions.

December 31,
2021 2020
D 10
l -

Balances at Banks and other financial institutions 4,753,009 6,347,592
Due to bank (7,799,000) 3,418,442
Interest Income 14,057 12,900
Interest and commission expenses (74,731) {41,616)
Cost of services provided by the Arab Banking

Corporation — Jordan® (44,383) -

* This item represents administrative services provided by the parent company (Arab Banking
Corporation — Jordan), such as the leasing of sites and staff garages, providing water and
electricity, and services related to human resources, in addition to information system
services. The cost of these services during the year 2021 amounted to JO 44,383 in
accordance with the Executive Instructions No. (3) of regulation Mo. (40) for the year 2021
regarding transfer pricing for income tax purposes. The cost of these services was calculated
using the comparative pricing method. The effective date for these services was In July
2021.

The following is a summary of the senior executive management benefits:

2021 2020
D D
Salaries and bonuses 230,204 252,203
2021 2020
Ble) 1D
Off - Statement of Financial Position items
Letters of guarantes 1,722,000 1,672,000
Unutilized company facility limits- Jordan 1,255,000 1,117,058
Unutilized company Facility limits- Bahrain 3,545,000 8,153,500
18. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
This item consists of the following:
2021 2020
D D
Unutilized customer facilily limits 857,888 931,233
Letters of guarantee * 2,132,000 2,082,000
2,989,888 3,013,233

This item includes a performance guarantee of JD 1,835,000 Esued in favor of the Jordan
Securities Commission for the brokerage license and a guarantee of ID 100,000 for the
underwriting license and a guarantea of JD 197,000 in favor of Securities Depositary Center as
a clearance guarantee Lo ensure settlement.
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19, Risk Management
2. Credit Risk
The Company's credit policy requires that all customers granted credit limits in regional and
international markets are subject to procedures including approval by the Board of Directors.
In addition, the Credit Committee checks the credit-worthiness and determines a credit limit
for each customer prior to approval, No trading is allowed by the customer prior to this
approval. Debit balances of customers are subject to continuous monitoring and follow-up by
the Credit Control Department, which reports to the Credit Committee, Debit balances are

guaranteed by investmant portfolios covering a8 minimum aof 150% of the credit granted to the
customer,

The following table shows the distribution of account receivables and the market values of the
securities guaranteeing them as at December 31, 2021:

Partfolic Market Value/

Product Balance Cash Margin

For the year ended December 31, 2021 Thousand 1D Thousand JD
Trade receivables- margin 28,447 B4,176
Trade recelvables- non-performing margin 2,716 423
For the vear ended December 31, 2020

Trade recelvables- margin 25,202 41,305
Trade receivables- non-performing margin 2,515 =

The credit exposures of Company balances, receivables, and other receivables as of December
31, are distributed as follows:

Corporate Individual Government ~ Total
For the vear ended December Thousand 0 Thousand 1D Thousand Thousand
31. 2021 1D 1D
Balances at banks and other
financial institutions 8,023 g . 8,023
Trade recelvables 9475 21,121 - 30,596
Others 2 37 66 105
Total 17,500 21,158 B6 38,724
Corporate  Individual Government Total
For the year ended December Thousand JD  Thousand 1D Thousand Thousand 10
31, 2020 i
Balances at banks and other
fimancial institutions 9,688 - . 9,688
Trade receivablos 8,295 18,125 2 26,430
Others 2 49 25 76
Total 17,985 18,174 25 36,184
The geographical distribution of credit exposures is as Igl!lfws:
ther
Middie Eastern
Jordan Countries Europe Total
For the year 2021 gecgraphical
area 1D D 1D 1D
Balances at banks and other
financial institution 4,801 1,452 1,770 B,D23
Trade receivables 30,596 - - 30,596
Other debit balances 105 - . 105
Total for 2021 35,302 1,452 1,770 38,724
Total for 2020 32,698 1,363 2,123 36,184

r:
Risk of changes in currency exchange rates that affect the Company’s assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies. The Company prepares sensitivity analyses to monitor the effect of changes
of {+/-1%) in foreign exchange rates on its net profits and equity.
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Most of the Company's transactions are in Jordanian Dinars and US Dollars. The Jordanian
Dinar is gig%i;d to the US Dollar (USD 1.41 equals one Jordanian Dinar). Therefore, currency
risk for mpany's is not considered to be significant and the company does not usually
hold major financial positions in other currencies that might affect the Company since the
Company acts as a brokerage firm on bahalf of its customers.

The Company prepares sensitivity analyses to monitor the effect of currency rate changes of
(+/-10% ) on its net profit and loss and egquity:
Effect of 10% of currency
exchange rate changes on

Financial tatement of

Currency _position Comprehensive Income
1D D

For the year ended December 31, 2021
uso (194.422) (194)
GBP 240 .
EUR 94 :
For the year ended December 31, 2020
UsD B3,082 83
GBP 2 =
EUR G5 .
$Ee concentration In currency risk distribution is as follows:
For the vear Ended December 31, 2021 US Dollar  EURO GBP __ _ Others Total
Assets: 1D 000 10 000 1D 00O 1D 000 10 000
Balances at Banks and other financial
Institutions 4,520 &R 1,301 1,438 7,397
Account receivables 3 - el % 3
Total assets 4,553 [=1z] 1,301 1,438 7,400
Liabilities:
Due to banks 7,799 - - - 7,795
Trade payables 3,413 67 1,301 1,447 6,228
Cash margins 24 - . = 24
Other credit balances 2 - - 1 5
Total labilities 11,240 67 1,301 1,448 14,056
Nt concentration in the statement of
financial position 6,647 | = (10} (6,656)
For the year Ended December 31, 2020
Total Assets _ 4,950 7] 2,230 1,107 8,356
Total liabilities 7349 gm 2,230 1,106 10,754
Met Concentration in the Skatement of
Financial Position (2,398} - . 1 {2,395)

The Enmpanv Eas no significant exposure to equity price risk since it does not have such
Investrments.

%h& following schedule represents the statement of profit or loss’s sensitivity to reasonable
changes In currency exchange rates, whereby all other variables remain constant:

Increase Effect on profit
Year Points D
2021 10 22,797
2020 10 23,002

If the changes were negative, the effect would be the same as shown above but with a reversed
sign.
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Interest rate sensitivity gap is as follows:

Average
For the wear ended Decemiar Up to 3 3=-6 &—-12 1—=3 Owver 3 Zern Interest Interest
21, 2021 Months Manths ~~ Manths _ Years Yaars Elernents Tkl Rate
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thewsand  Thousand Thousand Thousand
Assols D D D o n) I g D %
Balpnces at banks and other
financial institutions . - - - - B.023 8,023 .
fiocount recelvables S5HM6 8,351 16,369 - - - 30,5596 10
Other debit bakances 24 4 20 9 = 108 169 5
Land held for sale = - - - - 1,69% 1,657 E:
Property and eguipment - net = - . = 32 33 =
Intanglitde Assets - = - - = 23 23 =
Deferrad s assets ] 2 . - * 1,205 1,205 -
Tolal assets 5.0 5,355 16, 360 g - 11 088 41745
Liabilities
Due o banks 7,799 - - - - - F.7949 1.2%
Trade payables - - - - . F405 7405 %
Cash marmins % - g - - 2 24 -
Other credit balpnoss * E = = - 1,532 1,532 -
Income tax provision - - - * - 573 573
Tokal Liahilities 7,799 - - - - O 534 17,333
Interest Aale Sensitivity Gap [1,BO5) E_l|355 IE'EIB'D g - 1,554 24,4132
Ayarage
For the year ended Docomiber Uptad 3-86 6- 12 i-3 Over 3 Zem Interest Interest
31, 20240 __Months  Months  Moaths Years Years Elements _ Tokal _Rate
Thowssand Thousand Thousesd Thousemd  Thousand Thousand Thousand
Asciets o o o o o n o o
Brlances at banks and olher
Tinancial institution - - s - - 0,688 8, 6EB -
Account recetvables @ 548 4,514 17 362 ] - - 26421 10
Other debit balances 30 [ i3 3 % 65 137 5
Land held for sake . - - - 5 1,657 1,697 -
Property and egquipment - net - - - - - A 4 -
[ntangible Assets - . . - - 17 17 -
Deferred tax assels - - - 5 = 1192 1,193 -
Tobal as=sets 4|5?5 JI‘EZU l?lﬂgﬁ g_ 2 12,703 :ﬂ'llmﬁ
Liatuilits=s
Due to banks 3,418 - - - - - 3418 i.2
Trace payables . - - - - 9,411 GAdll s
Cach margins = - * - - 122 122 a
Oeher credit balances . - - - - 1,415 E415
Inecome tax provision - £ - . = a5 4R .
Totel Listilitias 3#13 - - - - 11412 11.§3-EI
Interest Rate Senstivity Gap 1,157 4,530 17,395 3 - 1,791 24,366
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its liabilities whan they fall
due. To manage this risk, management maintains a sufficient amount of cash balances and
enough financing through credit limits. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified
funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and maintains a sufficient amount of
cash and cash equivalents.

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the Company's llabilities at December 31,
2021 on the basis of the remaining perod to maturity and current market prices is as follows:

Up ko 1 i-3 3-8 6 =12 1=3 Cwer 3 No Specific
Miinih Months Months Honths Yoars Years Matusrity Tikal
Thouwsand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Thoisand
o o D i D Jo b [} Thousand 10

Far the vear endod
Becember 31, 3021
Liabilities
Due to banks 7:7.99 : : . - - . 7,799
Trade payables 7,403 ’ : 2 : : : 7,405
Cash marging il - T - £ = - 24
Dther Rabifties 131 453 341 596 11 - = 1,532
Income tax provision 154 £ g - - - - 573

Total Liabilities 15,558 453 715 596 14 - . 17,333
For the year ended
Decemberdi, 2030
Liatilitias
Dus to banks 3418 ; : . . : _ 3,818
Trade payablis 9411 i B . . . = 9,411
Cash margins L1 - - . - . - 122
Other liabilities i 329 363 533 11 - - 1,415
Income tax provision iS58 = 306 i . : . 464

13,268
Total Liabiities 320 689 533 11 - ] 14,E30

The primary objective of the management of the Company's capital is to ensure that it

maintains adequate capital ratios in order to support the Company's activities and maximize
the partner's value.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes the necessary adjustmants in the light
of changes in the working conditions. However, the Company did not make any amendments
to the objectives, policies or procedures relating to the structuring of capital during the current
or previous year.

The items included in the capital structure are the paid-up capital, retalned earnings, statutory

reserves, and general risk reserve, totaling JD 24,411,984 as at December 31, 2021, compared
to JD 24,365,512 as at December 31, 2020,
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ssets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and llabilities according to when they are expected

to be recoverad or setthed:

For the year ended December 31, 2021
Assets:
Cash and balances at banks and other
financial institutions
Trade receivables
Other debit balances
Lands held for sale
Property and equipment - net
Intangible assats
Deferred tax assats
Taotal Assefs

Liabilities:

Due to banks

Trade payables

Cash margins

Other credit balances

Income tax provision
Total Liabilities
Met Assats

For the vear ended December 31, 2020
Assels:

Cash and balances at banks and other
financial institutions
Trade recaivables
Cther debit balances
Lands held for sale
Property and equipment - net
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assats
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Due to banks

Trade payables

Cash margins

Other credit balancoes

Income tax provision
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Within More than
1 year 1 wear Tolal
Thausand Thiouisand Thausand
D i 5] o
8,023 - 8,023
30,596 - 30,596
52 117 169
= 1,697 1,697
- 3z a2
- 23 23
= 1,205 1,205
38,671 3,074 41,745
7,799 = 7,799
7,405 - 7405
24 - 24
1,521 11 1,532
573 - 573
17,322 11 17,333
21,349 3,063 24,412
Within More than
1 year 1 year Total
Thousand Thousand Thousand
JD 1D 10
9,688 - 9,688
26421 - 26,421
L9 i1 137
- 1,697 1,697
- 44 44
- 17 17
- 1,192 1,192
36,178 3,018 39,196
3418 - 3,418
9411 - 2.411
122 . 122
1,404 11 1,415
464 — 464
14,819 11 _ 14 830
21,359 3,007 24 366

= 57 -



n Fi
In the normal course of business, the Company manages the investments of customars.

These accounts are separated from the Company’s assets and do not appear on the financial
statements, There are no investments managed by the Company on behalf of customers as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

23, Lawsuits Against the Company
The tatal lawsuits raised against the company amounted to JD 10,635 as of December 31,

2021. In the opinlon of the Company's management and its legal advisor, no obligations will
arise which will exceed the provision recorded of an amount equivalent to 1D 50,000 as of
December 31, 2021,

24, Fair Value of Financial Asses and Financial Liabilities with no determined Fair Value
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial llabilitles recognized In the

Company’s financial statements approximate their fair values for the year ended December
31, 2021.

25. Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
The cutbreak of the novel Corcnavirus (Covid-19) at the beginning of the 2020 and Its spread
across several geographical areas around the world caused disruptions to economic and
business activities, and this event is wilnessing continuous and rapid developments, which
required the company's management to conduct an assessment of the expected effects an
the company's business.

The company has prepared a study to determine the impact of the Coronavirus on the
company’s activities and the company's financial performance to take appropriate measuras,
noting that the company has updated the macroeconomic facters and changed the weights of
the macroeconomic scenarios within the calculation of expected credit losses for the year
ended December 31, 2021,
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